# Dell Networking Mobility Starter Kit Quick Setup Guide

Odie Cavazos, *Technical Marketing* Colin King, *Network Engineering* Valerie Padilla, *Network Engineering* 



# Notes, Cautions, and Warnings

- **NOTE:** A NOTE indicates important information that helps you make better use of your computer
- △ CAUTION: A CAUTION indicates potential damage to hardware or loss of data if instructions are not followed.
- M WARNING: A WARNING indicates a potential for property damage, personal injury, or death.

This document is for informational purposes only and may contain typographical errors and technical inaccuracies. The content is provided as is, without express or implied warranties of any kind.

© 2012 Dell Inc. All rights reserved. Dell and its affiliates cannot be responsible for errors or omissions in typography or photography. Dell, the Dell Iogo, and PowerEdge are trademarks of Dell Inc. Intel and Xeon are registered trademarks of Intel Corporation in the U.S. and other countries. Microsoft, Windows, and Windows Server are either trademarks or registered trademarks of Microsoft Corporation in the United States and/or other countries. Other trademarks and trade names may be used in this document to refer to either the entities claiming the marks and names or their products. Dell disclaims proprietary interest in the marks and names of others.

August 2012 | Rev. 1.0

# Contents

Dell Networking Mobility Starter Kit 4
What's included in your Mobility Starter Kit4
Purpose of this guide4
Resources 4
Getting Started Network Topology5
Getting Started with the Dell PowerConnect 5500 Series PoE Switch
Configuring the PowerConnect 5500 Series PoE Switch
Next steps and recommendations
Getting Started with Dell PowerConnect W-Instant Access Points
Connecting your W-IAP105 Instant Access Points
Connect to the Provisioning Wi-Fi Network
Log in to the Dell PowerConnect W-Series Instant Access Point WebUI 10
Creating a Network 11
Next steps and recommendations 14
Dell OpenManage Network Manager 15
Downloading Dell OpenManage Network Manager 15
OMNM Download instructions:
OMNM Pre-Installation Checklist 16

# Dell Networking Mobility Starter Kit

This guide will help you install and configure the Dell Networking Mobility Starter Kit. To ensure an easy installation, please read through the entire guide and determine the configuration options that will best suit your needs.

# What's included in your Mobility Starter Kit

- PowerConnect 5500 Series PoE Switch (1)
- PowerConnect W-Series W-IAP105 Instant Access Points (4)
- Dell OpenManage Network Manager (available online)

# Purpose of this guide

This guide is to enable a network administrator to configure a basic network with the components of the Mobility Starter Kit. The resulting network can be used as a starting point to enable access to any resource connected to the network through the PowerConnect 5500 Series PoE switch. Access rules and Security configuration is left to the network administrator after completing this Getting Started Guide.

As an option, this guide also provides information to assist in the installation of Dell OpenManage Network Manager (OMNM). This software is designed to help simplify management of your Dell network environment through one unified console.

NOTE: Throughout the document, information or steps referring to OMNM will be optional.

#### Resources

- Dell Support manual site <u>http://support.dell.com/manuals</u>
- PowerConnect 5500 Series PoE manuals -<u>http://support.dell.com/support/edocs/network/pc5524p/</u> http://support.dell.com/support/edocs/network/pc5548p/
- PowerConnect W-Series Instant SW manuals-<u>http://support.dell.com/support/edocs/NETWORK/PC\_WSer/Instant/</u>
- Dell OpenManage Network Managerhttp://dell.com/NetworkManager

# Getting Started Network Topology



# Getting Started with the Dell PowerConnect 5500 Series PoE Switch

This guide describes how to install and configure the PowerConnect 5500 Series PoE switch. The outlined steps will guide you through the initial switch configuration to get the system up and running as quickly as possible. We will use the switch's automatic Setup Wizard to configure the following:

- Username and password
- Management switch IP address
- IP subnet mask
- Default gateway IP address
- SNMP Community String (optional)

For more information, see the *Dell PowerConnect 5500 Series User Guide* and *Getting Started Guide* at support.dell.com/manuals.

#### Figure 1 PowerConnect 5524P Switch Chassis



# Configuring the PowerConnect 5500 Series PoE Switch

After the switch is installed on a flat surface or rack and connected to a power supply, we are ready to begin the configuration.

- 1. Connect the switch to the terminal and boot the unit. The boot process runs for approximately 40-45 seconds. When the boot process completes, the following LEDs are lit, as shown in the figure below.
  - Power
  - Status
  - Fan (should be green)

**NOTE**: For more information on connecting the switch to a terminal, see "Connecting the Switch to the Terminal" section in the *Dell PowerConnect 5500 Series Getting Started Guide*.





- 2. Obtain the following information from the network administrator:
  - Username and password for switch admin access
  - The IP address assigned to the VLAN 1 interface through which the switch is to be managed (by default, every external and internal port is a member of the VLAN 1)
  - The IP subnet mask for the network
  - The default gateway (next hop router) IP address for configuring the default route
  - SNMP Community String and SNMP Management System IP address (optional)

3. The Setup Wizard is run automatically .The Setup Wizard displays the following information:

Welcome to Dell Easy Setup Wizard

The Setup Wizard guides you through the initial switch configuration and gets you up and running easily and quickly. You can skip the Setup Wizard and enter CLI mode to manually configure the switch. The system will prompt you with a default answer; by pressing Enter, you accept the default value.

You must respond to the next question to run the Setup Wizard within 60 seconds, otherwise the system will continue with normal operation using the default system configuration.

Would you like to enter the Setup Wizard (you must answer this question within 60 seconds)?  $(\rm Y/\rm N)$ 

4. Enter [Y] to run the wizard.

After entering [Y] the wizard provides interactive guidance through the initial switch configuration. The following information is displayed:

You can exit the Setup Wizard at any time by entering [ctrl+Z].

The system is not set up for SNMP management by default.

If you enter [N] or if you do not respond within 60 seconds, the Setup Wizard automatically exits and the CLI console prompt is displayed.

To manage the switch using SNMP (optional, required for OMNM) you can:

- Setup the initial SNMP version 2 account now.
- Return later and setup the SNMP version account.

For more information on setting up an SNMP version 2 account, see the *Dell PowerConnect 5500* Series User Guide and Getting Started Guide at support.dell.com/manuals.

Would you like to set up the SNMP management interface now? [Y/N]

**NOTE**: If you are not setting up OMNM at this time and cannot obtain the SNMP information in steps 6 and 7, enter [N] to skip to step 8. It is recommended to setup SNMP within this Setup Wizard if you intend on using OMNM.

5. Enter [N] to skip to Step 8 or enter [Y] to continue the Setup Wizard. If you enter [Y] the following information is displayed:

To set up the SNMP management account you must specify the management system IP address and the "community string" or password that the particular management system uses to access the switch. The wizard automatically assigns the highest access level [Privilege Level 15] to this account.

You can use Dell Network Manager or other management interfaces to change this setting later and to add additional management system later. For more information on adding management systems, see the user documentation. To add a management station:

Please enter the SNMP community string to be used:

6. Enter the SNMP community string. You can use the default name "public"

Please enter the IP address of the Management System (A.B.C.D) or wildcard (0.0.0.0) to manage from any Management Station: [0.0.0.0].

- 7. Enter the SNMP Management System IP.
- 8. Set up user account privilege level, as follows: The following information is displayed:

Now we need to set up your initial privilege (Level 15) user account. This account is used to login to the CLI and Web interface. You may set up other accounts and change privilege levels later. For more information on setting up user accounts and changing privilege levels, see the user documentation.

To set up a user account: Enter the user name: Please enter the user password:

Please reenter the user password:

- 9. Enter the following:
  - User name, for example "admin"
  - Password and password confirmation.

#### 10. Press Enter.

The following information is displayed:

Next, an IP address is setup. The IP address is defined on the default VLAN (VLAN #1). This is the IP address you use to access the Telnet, Web interface, or SNMP interface for the switch.

To set up an IP address:

Please enter the IP address of the device (A.B.C.D):

Please enter the IP subnet mask (A.B.C.D or nn):

11. Enter the management IP address and IP subnet mask, for example 192.168.2.100 as the IP address, and 255.255.255.0 as the IP subnet mask.

#### 12. Press Enter. The following information is displayed:

Finally, set up the default gateway.

Please enter the IP address of the gateway from which this network is reachable (e.g. 192.168.2.1). Default gateway (A.B.C.D):[0.0.0.0]

13. Enter the default gateway and press enter. The following message is displayed (example):

```
This is the configuration information that has been collected:

SNMP Interface = "Dell Network Manager"@192.168.2.10

User Account setup = admin

Password = ********

Management IP address = 192.168.2.100

255.255.255.0

Default Gateway = 192.168.2.1

If the information is correct, please select (Y) to save the

configuration and copy to the start-up configuration file. If the

information is incorrect, select (N) to discard configuration and

restart the wizard: [Y/N]
```

- 14. Verify that the information is correct and select [Y] to save the configuration.
- 15. Continue managing the switch either through the console or Telnet, using the CLI or the web GUI.

#### Next steps and recommendations

Before connecting the Instant Access Points to the 5500 Series PoE switch, ensure that a DHCP Server is available and enabled on your network. Connect your DHCP Server to one of the ports on the PowerConnect 5500 Series PoE switch. In some cases, the DHCP Server will be a function of your internet provider. For the Dell Networking Mobility Starter Kit example, we are using the DHCP Server from our internet router. Ensure that the DHCP service is disabled on the PowerConnect 5500 Series PoE switch if you have another DHCP server on your network.

#### Getting Started with Dell PowerConnect W-Instant Access Points

The following information will assist you to quickly connect and configure Dell PowerConnect W-Series Instant Access Point (IAP). After following the simple steps in this section, you'll have a basic wireless network that will let users access any resource on the subnet used in this Getting Started Guide.

For physical installation information and an overview of the W-105IAP hardware, see the Installation Guide that's included with the IAP.

For detailed configuration information, see the *Dell PowerConnect W-Series Instant Access Point User Guide*.

#### Connecting your W-IAP105 Instant Access Points

After setting up your PowerConnect 5500 Series PoE switch, you are ready to connect the IAPs.

- 1. Using standard Cat5 Ethernet cable, connect the ENET port of the W-105IAP to the 5500 Series PoE switch. All IAPs may be connected at this time, or just a single IAP.
- 2. The IAPs will boot, obtaining an IP address from the DHCP server you setup in the previous section. All LEDs will be lit when the boot process completes.

**NOTE**: While in the provisioning state, access to the network is open to anyone that can connect to the provisioning SSID. Ensure you complete the steps below in a prompt manner to secure the network.

Dell Networking Mobility Starter Kit - Quick Setup Guide

## Connect to the Provisioning Wi-Fi Network

PowerConnect W-Series IAPs will be setup by accessing the WLAN through a SSID named "instant".

3. On a PC with WLAN enabled, connect to the **instant** SSID as shown in Figure 3. Click the Connect button

Figure 3 Connecting to provisioning network with Windows 7



## Log in to the Dell PowerConnect W-Series Instant Access Point WebUI

4. Open a web browser and navigate to instant.dell-pcw.com to access the Dell Virtual Controller login screen. If you enter any other URL, you are redirected to the same Dell Virtual Controller login screen.

**NOTE**: Users may see a warning stating that there is a problem with a security certificate. This is expected. Proceed to the login by clicking on the link to continue to the website.

- 5. In the login screen, as shown in Figure 4, enter the following credentials:
  - a. Username: admin
  - b. Password: admin

Figure 4 Virtual Controller Login

Welcome to Instant	
D¢LL	VIRTUAL CONTROLLER
Username: Password:	Log In

6. If you have ordered an IAP that is for use outside of the US or Japan, you will be prompted for a country code. Select your country code from the drop-down menu. Users in the US and Japan do not need to complete this step.

### Creating a Network

Dell PowerConnect W-Series Instant Access Point user interface is a standard web-based interface that allows you to configure and monitor an IAP network.

1. In the Network window, click the New link, as shown in Figure 5.

Figure 5 Instant User Interface

e Edit View Fav	vorites Tools Help							altinon DE DEE WID UDM	× 🖓 Convert - 🗖
<b>ell</b> M	IRTUAL CONTROLLER	PowerConnect	W-Series Powered by Aruba Netwo	<sub>rks</sub> Instant	-CF:86:69			COUNTRY OF FOUR MORE STORE	iearch
1 Network		+.	1 Access Point		+	县 1 Client			
ne- tant New	Clienta 1		Name - 0010b1861d186169	c	ees	Name	IP Address 172.16.11.7	Febrook instant	Access Point 00:06:06:d1:66:69
Instant-CF	:86:69	RF Dashbo	erd					Monitoring g	Alerta IDS Configuration
			tional	Speed		Utilization	Noise Errors	Clients	

2. The New Network window appears as shown Figure 6.

Figure 6 New Network Windows - Basic Info Tab

ew Network			He
Basic Info	2 VLAN	3 Security	4 Access
Basic Information	on		
Name (SSID):			
Primary usage:	Employee	•	
	C Voice		
0 I I I I I I I	C Guest		
Content filtering:	Disabled		
Hide SSID:			
Show advanced opti	ons		Next Cancel

- 3. In the **Basic Info** tab, shown in Figure 6, enter a name for the network in the **Name (SSID)** text box. Click **Next** to continue.
- 4. In the VLAN tab, shown in Figure 7, select the required Client IP assignment and Client VLAN assignment options. For this basic setup, keep the default settings. Click Next to continue.

Figure 7 VLAN Tab

New	Network					He
1	Basic Info	2 VLAN	3	Security	4	Access
Clie	ent IP & VLAN As	signment				
Clie	ent IP assignment:	C Virtual Controller assigned				
		Network assigned				
Cli	ent VLAN assignment:	Default				
		C Static				
		C Dynamic				
					Ba	ck Next Cancel

5. In the Security tab, shown in Figure 8, enter a passphrase in the Passphrase and Retype fields. Note this passphrase for future use. Click Next to continue.

Figure 8 Security Tab

New Network				<u>Help</u>
1 Basic Info	2 VLAN	3 Security	4 Access	
Security Level				
More Secure	Key management:	WPA-2 Personal	•	
	Passphrase format:	8-63 chars	•	
Enterprise	Passphrase:			
	Retype:			
😔 - Personal	MAC authentication:	Disabled	•	
Open				
Less Secure				
			Back Next (	Cancel

6. In the Access tab, shown in Figure 9, use the default option Unrestricted. Click Finish to continue.

Figure 9 Access Tab

Ne	w Network							<u>Help</u>
1	Basic Info	2	VLAN	3	Security	4	Access	
A	ccess Rules							
C	More ontrol							
	- Role-based							
	- Network-based							
	- Unrestricted	P	Io restrictions on access bas	ed o	n destination or type of tra	fic		
c	Less ontrol							
						Ba	ck Finish Car	icel

7. Verify that the new network you named in step 9 has been created. Figure 10 shows a network that was created named **example**.

Figure 10 Verifying new networks

left 2 Networks		+
Name 🗟	Clients	
example	0	
instant	1	
New		

8. For future reference, note the IP address of the Virtual Controller. The Virtual Controller address can be found in the "Info" section of the Instant window as indicated in Figure 11.

#### Figure 11 Virtual Controller IP address

Settings M. EX. DOZ. YOT MADARMENTS Section 100 knowns     Instant-CF:88:69      In	File Edit View Fa	avorites Tools Help			Centricate error 🖹 C X 🛛 🎒 In	dant ×			A the Convert + D Select
VIETURAL CONTROLLER     Power Connect W-Series     Power Connect W-Series     Power Connect W-Series     Instant-CF:88:69     Instant-CF:88:69     Instant-CF:88:69       Wiet Aussissing     Immer     Immer<							2	ttings RF PEF W1P VPN N	aintenance Support Help Logout
By 1 Network       By 1 Access Point       By 1 Access Point       By 1 Access Point       Image: Clenking Point       Notest: Clenking Point	DELL	VIRTUAL CONTROLLER	owerConnect W-Series	Powered by Aruba Networks	nstant-CF:86:69				Search
Nime -     Oants     Nime -     Or Advance     Nite -     P Advance     Attack     Access Point       • Mort     1     -     1     -     1     -     1     -     0	🖗 1 Network		+ 📓 1 Ac	cess Point		🔜 1 Client			
PreInstant_CF:B6:09 Venture v 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	Neme – instant → Now	Cliente 3	76mm 00:0b:86:	d;96:69	Cients 1	Alarina	IP Address 172.16.11.7	Network instant	Access Funt 00:00:06:d1:66:69
View Consider P. 5.2.2 And Cleves and All Access Points and All Access Points and All Access Points and and All Access Points and and All Access Points and All Ac	Instant-C	F:86:69						Monitoring 0	
	Name: Country rode:	Instant-CF:86:69	RF Dashboard	Signal Spee	ed	Utilization	Noise Errors	Usage Trends Clients	Nerts IDS Configuration ~

- 9. Connect your client PC to the network you created, as described in step 3 in the section "Connect to the Provisioning WiFi Network".
- 10. Login to the Dell Instant Access Point Web UI, as in step 4 and 5 in the section "Connect to the Provisioning WiFi Network".

**NOTE:** If you have not connected your switch to the internet you may need to manually enter the Virtual Controller IP address from step 8 into the browser to access the login screen. On the new SSID, the redirect feature from the address **instant.dell-pcw.com** will only work if you have a functional DNS on your network.

- 11. The instant provisioning network is automatically deleted and should no longer be present.
- 12. If you have not connected the additional IAPs that came with your purchase, you may do so at any time. The Virtual Controller setup in the preceding steps will automatically locate and configure any IAP connected on the same subnet. No further configuration for the other IAPs is necessary.

#### Next steps and recommendations

The above steps result in a WLAN that is secured by a WPA2 pre-shared key (passphrase). Dell recommends administrators use WPA2 as the minimum level of security for your WLAN security. Enterprise grade security through authentication servers can be setup during or after the initial steps detailed above. For additional information on authentication server settings, see the *Dell PowerConnect W-Series Instant Users Guide*.

Any user with access to the passphrase used in the setup described in this quick start guide will be able to access any network resource at an unrestricted level. Dell recommends administrators use the proper amount of restrictions for each user as required by their own access and security policy. For information about Network-based and Role-based access rule settings, see the *Dell PowerConnect W-Series Instant Users Guide*.

# Dell OpenManage Network Manager

OpenManage Network Manager is designed to help simplify management in your Dell network environment through:

- One-to-many management functionality
- Easy monitoring and diagnosing of networking health and performance
- The ability to deploy firmware, backup and restore configurations across many switches

Key features in OpenManage Network Manager 5.0 include:

- A web-based user interface that is easy to use and highly customizable
- Traffic Flow Analysis to help you maintain optimum performance configurations
- ProScan configuration audit to help you pinpoint and correct configuration issues
- Active performance monitors to help you customize performance monitoring
- Resource Discovery Wizard to simplify discovery of IP-based network elements
- Resource management enables easy configuration of Dell switches
- Resource group management to provide you with a one-to-many switch configuration
- Comprehensive reporting capabilities for inventory, firmware, interfaces, ports and more.
- Advanced scheduling to help automate key tasks, such as firmware deployment, backup and configuration changes
- Event management to help filter and forward events and traps
- Flexible dashboards for fault, availability and performance monitoring
- Adaptive scripting interface for creating custom queries and configurations

## Downloading Dell OpenManage Network Manager

Open Manage Network Manager is available at no charge with support for up to ten (10) managed devices. For the Mobility Starter Kit, the 5500 Series PoE switch and W-IAP105s count as 2 devices. All 4 W-IAP105 Instant APs managed through a single virtual controller, count as a single device.

Standalone, single server installations server guidelines:

- REQUIRED Minimum hardware: 6GB RAM, dual core CPU, 200 GB 7200 RPM Disk.
- RECOMMENDED Minimum hardware: 8GB RAM, quad core CPU, 400 GB 10,000 RPM Disk

NOTE: For detailed server sizing information see the OpenManage Network Manager User Guide.

## OMNM Download instructions:

Navigate to the URL: <u>http://www.dell.com/NetworkManager</u>

Click on "Click here to download"

Fill in the required information on the registration form and you will be sent an email with a link to download the software. Included in the download package are the *OpenManage Network Manager User Guide* and *Quick Start Guide*. During the install, refer to both these documents to customize to your network settings.

#### **OMNM Pre-Installation Checklist**

To assist in installing OMNM, please use the following lists as reference:

#### Know the following before installation of OMNM 5.1:

- Select devices (IP addresses) and ports to monitor.
- Select IP address for OMNM server.
  - Configure IP address as a management station and receiver of SNMP traps on each device.
- IP Range of devices being discovered.
- Determine if OMNM is going to use SNMPv1/v2/v3 to talk to the device.
- Telnet credential for devices being discovered.
- HTTP/HTTPs credentials for devices being discovered.
- WMI credentials for server discovery.
- Verify any firewalls have open ports between the devices on OMNM servers.
- Setup SNMP and telnet/ssh username and password credentials on the 5500 Series PoE switch and Instant Virtual Controller. These credentials are used by OMNM to manage the device.
- Review device and OMNM release notes.

#### Install the following:

- Active Perl -> Reboot system
- Latest Java client
- Latest Adobe Flash player
- Latest Adobe Reader

#### Supported Web Browsers:

- Chrome (v6 and above)
- Safari (v 5 and above)
- Firefox (v 3.6 and above)

• Internet Explorer (v 9 and above)

#### Supported Operating System Versions:

- Windows 2003 (Standard, Enterprise and Web 64-bit only)
- Windows Server 2008 (including R2 and Enterprise Edition), 64-bit only.
- Red Hat (Enterprise version 5.5 or 6.0) Linux, 64-bit only.

**NOTE**: You must disable User Account Control if you are installing on Windows Server 2008. Temporarily disable the system Firewall or any Anti-Virus software prior to install. Install OMNM 5.1 and the GUI wizard will walk you through initial setup. OpenManage Network Manager will install as a service and will start automatically. Please refer to User Guide and release notes for additional setup information.